City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

214-220 West State Street

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-03-414-004; 12-03-414-018

HISTORIC NAME: Fargo Block

COMMON NAME: Unknown

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1915

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1946 (storefronts/rear add'n)

ARCHITECT: Unknown

BUILDER:
WILSON BROTHERS: [-1 AUGUST [J OSCAR [ BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Two-Part Commercial Block, ltalianate

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Rectangular

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 2

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Not Visible

|z| Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Brick

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: N/A

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Varies by Storefront; several date to 1946

IE Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL: Bronze/Alum (storefront); Wood (upper)

|:| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Fixed (storefront); Double-hung 1/1 (upper)

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Shed

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Membrane

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: No

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

Many storefronts remodeled 1946; others later. Central parapet
partially removed (ca. 1946)

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action: 4 17.07 Windows; 8.18.23 New
Sign; 11.7.23 New Wall Sign




City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

214-220 West State Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

In January 1914, H.B. Fargo purchased the property at 214 W. State,
which had previously been occupied by "Dad" Martin's Butcher Shop
and Market, as well as Miss Duckett's restaurant (Geneva
Republican, Jan. 24, 1914).

William Cummings was contracted to lay the basement and
foundation once the existing buildings were removed, with plans for
the new structure to be a two-story brick building measuring 48 feet
by 100 feet (Geneva Republican, Feb. 4, 1914). The buildings and
barn were relocated to Seventh Street, just north of Burgess-Norton,
where Wm. Cummings converted them into a dwelling (Geneva
Republican, Feb. 14, 1914).

The Martin Building, which had been built by William Porter, Sr. in
1866, had served as his meat market for 30 years. An adjacent
building, which had housed jewelers since its construction by Mr.
Fletcher in the 1850s, was noted as the oldest building on the block

SOURCES:

GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869
Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land
Records; Geneva, lllinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, lllinois: 150
LReminders of 150 Years: Wilson Brathers - Contractors & Builders1905-1931 by

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
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PROPERTY ADDRESS:

214-220 West State Street
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: In January 1914, H.B. Fargo purchased the property at 214 W. State, which had previously been occupied by "Dad" Martin's Butcher Shop and Market, as well as Miss Duckett's restaurant (Geneva Republican, Jan. 24, 1914). 

William Cummings was contracted to lay the basement and foundation once the existing buildings were removed, with plans for the new structure to be a two-story brick building measuring 48 feet by 100 feet (Geneva Republican, Feb. 4, 1914). The buildings and barn were relocated to Seventh Street, just north of Burgess-Norton, where Wm. Cummings converted them into a dwelling (Geneva Republican, Feb. 14, 1914).

The Martin Building, which had been built by William Porter, Sr. in 1866, had served as his meat market for 30 years. An adjacent building, which had housed jewelers since its construction by Mr. Fletcher in the 1850s, was noted as the oldest building on the block (Geneva Republican, Mar. 4, 1914). The jewelry building was planned to be moved to a vacant lot next to the library, and the displaced barber shop and jewelry stores would be accommodated in the new building once completed (Geneva Republican, Feb. 24, 1915).

In 1915, F.D. Lawrence supplied lumber for the project, with Wilson Bros. handling the carpentry work (Geneva Republican, Apr. 21, 1915). Charles Fargo was in charge of the masonry work (Geneva Republican, May 1, 1915). By August 1915, the barber, jeweler, and Mark Joshel were preparing to move into the newly completed building (Geneva Republican, Aug. 28, 1915).

The barbershop was owned by Alexander Linck from 1912 until 1936, at which point it was renamed the City Barber Shop under the ownership of Pasqual Perrone (Geneva Republican).

In addition to this work, H.B. Fargo erected a two-story building immediately east of the Hotel Geneva in 1914 (Geneva Republican, Mar. 6, 1914).

In 1946, storefront alterations were made at 214 W. State for Claude Sansone, with the work completed by contractor August Wilson (Geneva Republican, June 7, 1946). That same year, a rear addition was constructed at 220 W. State by contractor John H. Bloomdahl (Geneva Republican, Apr. 12, 1946).

While the first floor of the building has primarily served commercial uses, the second floor has acted as a residence and as a meeting space. It is a sister building to the Fargo Theatre Block, located at 324 W State Street. This building contributes to the historic district as a rare example of a commercial sister building, for its involvement in the commercial development of the city, and for its association with influential citizens such as H.B. Fargo.
	SOURCES: GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land Records; Geneva, Illinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, Illinois: 150 Reminders of 150 Years; Wilson Brothers - Contractors & Builders, 1905-1931 by Donald Wilson (2002)
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